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Association for Engineering and
Medical Volunteer Services

ITiEREEEBIEGE

Mission Statement

To advocate and spearhead engineering
and medical volunteering services and to
integrate other social resources to enhance
the independent living and quality of life of
people with disabilities and elderly.

Specific Targets

- to popularize the participation of
professionals in volunteering works for
the provision of services for people with
disabilities, elderly and related people.

- to introduce new and improve existing
services in step with social and
technological developments

- to develop innovative service substance
and delivery means
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Social Servicing Is Our Object,

Professional Volunteering is Our Way
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
FTREHS

2020-2021 was an unprecedented and difficult year for Hong Kong
because of the epidemic COVID-19, which affected the general
public of Hong Kong and the service operation of the Association.
The services, to a large extent, had to run according to measure
introduced by the Government from time to time in responding the
changing situations of the society. The staff needed to double their
efforts to keep our service users in safe care, and some of the

programs had to be deferred or cancelled.

In particular, our Integrated Vocational Rehabilitation Service
Centre, the Endeavor, was suspended for months and were
resumed in March 2021 when the COVID epidemic was stabilized.
In order to reduce social contact, preventive measures such as
arranged service users in separate group to Centre for training,
provided only half-day training and suspension of lunch in initial
stage were launched. During the service interruption, social
workers tendered support activities to the service users via Zoom
meetings and mini-movie production. Apart from the “Disinfection
Care Pack”, the “Against COVID-19 special allowance” were
delivered to every service users to reduce their financial difficulties.

As a new initiative in our Information Technology Solution for
Rehabilitation service, with a 3-years funding support from the
HK Jockey Club, we had migrated over 200 existing rehabilitation
software from the existing flash into the new open formats of HTML

so that the software could be used in a wider range of platforms.

The Social Welfare Department had expanded 25 frail cases in
our Integrated Home Care Services during the year. Professional
services including nursing care, rehabilitation, cognitive training,
caregiver support service, and psychosocial counselling were
rendered to the service users.

Moreover, the Social Welfare Department had provided additional
subvention to our Supported Employment Service. We had
employed a social worker to enhance the post-placement support
service and introduced work attachment allowances and wage
subsidies for job trial to our service users.
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I CHAIRMAN’S REPORT FE®RE

Due to the pandemic, there was decreasing number of volunteer
participation and a total of 2,052 man-hours of volunteer service
from all service units in the year 2020-2021, which was about 57%
of the last financial year.

Having served the Association for over 31 years, Ms. Lisa Luk
had been retired from the post of the Executive Director in the
end of December 2020. We are thankful to Lisa, under her loyalty
and sustained efforts, the Association had developed specialized
elderly home care and vocational rehabilitation services.

Working under a challenging year, | would like to give my heartfelt
appreciation to all staff members for their dedication in keeping the
mission of the Association to serve the disabled and elderly people.
My gratitude also goes to all, Executive Committee Members, Sub-
committee Members, for giving valuable advice to maintain the
smooth service operation. | would like to convey my thanks to the
Social Welfare Department, related government departments, the
Community Chest, the Jockey Club, patron, advisors, corporate
partners, donors, volunteers, and business partners for their
unfailing support and contributions of all means.

Leung Kwok Fai
Chairman, Executive Committee
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TREASURER’S REPORT
B RS

The account for the year ended 31 March 2021 shows a surplus
of $3,530,249 . The total income for 2021 was $33,005,995. The
distribution of the funding sources is as follows:
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Designated donations :

=

TEEIB

3.42 %

Service income :

ARFFUIA

16.39 %

Subvention :
EBhFI8

* The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
EEBESREETES

*  The Community Chest
E YN

» Social Welfare Department

HEENE

6.68 %

5.87 %

66.57 %

The Association adopted the Lump Sum Grant Manual issued by
the Social Welfare Department since 2000. As at 31 March 2021,
the balance of Lump Sum Grant Reserve and Provident Fund
Reserve was HK$11,111,451 and HK$1,860,298 respectively.
The balance of these two reserves was kept in two separate bank
accounts.
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I TREASURER’S REPORT FEHRE

The Lump Sum Grant Reserve was used on the funding and
service agreement activities while the Provident Fund Reserve
was spent on enhancing the welfare of non-snap shot staff. To
facilitate staff recruitment and retention, the remuneration package
was reviewed periodically to ensure that it commensurate with the
market rate.

To better utilize the provident fund reserve for non-snap-shot staff,
the ExCo had previously revised the employer’s contribution level
and will consider to provide one-off injection to the mandatory
provident fund of staff whenever appropriate.

Our Executive Committee will monitor the Association’s financial
condition to ensure the adequacy of provisions and ascertain the
compliance with the funding and service agreement as well as
obligations to employees.

HONG Wai-chi, Christina
Treasurer, Executive Committee
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SERVICES REPORT
ARF% RS

Technical / Computer Aids Services for the Disabled
G P
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Enhancing the independence of disabled persons and elderly
through the design, fabrication, modification, installation and repair
of technical and computer aids is the goal of the service. Apart from
that, the repair and maintenance service for rehabilitation devices
such as, electronic speech aids, manual wheelchairs and electric
wheelchair, was also provided. To provide a comprehensive
one-stop service for the users, clinical advice, consultation and
recommendation on the design and appropriateness of technical
aids for specific user were also rendered.

In 2020-2021, 12 new products were designed and fabricated.
They included daily living aids such as height adjustable bowl
holder; safety enhancing devices such as plastic board for
COVID-19 prevention and integrated circuit door lock trainer. Some
new developed aids including, 3D printed cognitive training game,
3D printed Reality Orientation board, 3D printed chopstick adaptor,
new chopstick training package version 2, and new LED call bell
version 2. For computer related product, the new devices including
the new optical switch, new micro-mouse interface, 3D printed
hand support for mouse and big buddy button. During this period,
20 pieces of rehabilitation software were designed and collected,
whcih were largely related to cognitive training and rehabilitation.
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The Product Development Group continued to discuss and develop
new product ideas. Some product ideas were materialized with
the actual devices being fabricated. The design and fabrication of
these product ideas including Interactive Dice and the spoon and
fork training package. Some products had already completed while
the development of others were still in progress.

Information on the new and enhanced devices was disseminated
to potential users and agencies through our web site, news bulletin
and product catalogue. Due to the COVID-19 epidemic, it was not
possible to organize any large demonstration session or seminar,
however, a number of live demonstration had been provided
through the service of outreaching talk provided by Occupational
Therapy / Physiotherapy service. Surprisingly, the number of clients
attended the demonstration sessions was 30 times compared with
the last year. Moreover, the YouTube channel had been setup and
there were at least eight different video showing the application of
aids. It was hope that the new way of service demonstration could
compensate the effect of COVID-19 related to the social gathering
policy.

To upgrade the quality of service rendered, comprehensive after
sale service was provided. User manuals on our products were
compiled and distributed to the users. The manual composed
of individual product’s specifications, installation / application
guidelines and safety measures which could facilitate easy and
effective utilization by the users. The WeChat account & web
based broadcasting media had been established which aimed at

achieving the more up to date promotion platforms.
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I SERVICES REPORT [RFEHRE

The service continued to solicit feedback from users through user’s
satisfaction survey. In addition to voluntary feedback received
from users, survey was also conducted through phone interview.
During the reporting period, the survey findings reflected that 80%
of the service users considered that the application of technical
and computer devices could enhance their independence and
quality of life. Moreover, 80% of the service users considered that
more effective training could be rendered through the application
of assertive devices. Through individual contact with the service
users, invaluable comments were gathered and ideas for further

improvement of the products were also solicited.
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Statistics #HETEISE

Service provided

2020-2021

No. of clients served

ZHIREBRRE

PR ALAR TS BXIRBEAR
Design and fabricate technical and computer aids
Bt RELERE B Al
Repair technical and computer aids
ISR oAl
Modify and evaluate regular technical and computer aids
KR EFHEIRBEE &R 485
Provide clinical consultation and recommend appropriate aids for
people with disabled and elderly 25,005
R AT MRERAIRIR T4 IR M E B AR AV IR AE M8 A IR 75
Disseminate information on technical and computer aids to
rehabilitation and elderly service workers 2,050
MERERLERB LEERUEBERNER
Organize demonstration sessions

480
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Electric Wheelchair Repair Clinic and Resource Centre

BEsIE ik

Without funding subsidy, the Centre had achieved a financially
breakeven situation for more than five years. The COVID-19
epidemic continued affecting the service to a certain extent,
however, both the staff as well as the society started adapting to it.
The number of service users continued increasing and the overall
revenues of the Centre had all recorded even. The number of
new members had continued increasing steadily, and the current
total membership had exceeded 2,100. Due to the quality and
comprehensiveness of services, referrals from hospitals or other
NGOs continued growing steadily. The support from the volunteers

was continued.

The Centre went on providing the majority of service by means
of centre-based method. Other services such as on-site repair,
rental and borrowing services were maintained. Due to the
COVID-19 epidemic, the total number of referral related to the
Electric Wheelchair Driving School reduced as compared with
the last year. However, the number of referral related to the new
power wheelchair selection and purchase remained even. The
volunteer training and service matching program “Care Giving for
the New Power Wheelchair User “ had been suspended due to
the COVID-19. In order to maintain the connection between the
volunteers and the agency, a review gathering session had been
provided for them. In the session, many volunteers showed their
concern about when the service would be started again. It was
hoped that the condition of COVID-19 would become stable in the
middle of 2021 and the volunteer service could be resumed.
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In 2020-2021, the Centre had accumulated more than 2,100
members, it provided 261 centre-based repair services and 84
on-site repair and maintenance services. Over 80% of service
users responded satisfactory through the questionnaires and
telephone interviews. The user satisfaction survey would be
conducted continuously to collect user’s opinion for further service
improvement.

In order to promote the Centre’s service, the service brochure
would be sent to rehabilitation institutions, special schools, self-
help groups for the disabled, hospitals, social security field units
and integrated family service centers. We also organized seminars
and training events to let the public recognise the services.
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Statistics ZETEIF

Service provided

2020-2021

No. of clients served
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Membership

SEAH 2,127

Provision of home-based repair, maintenance and check up

ABEIRUEISRERRERSE 84

Provision of in-house repair

B IR SRS 261

Provision of wheelchair on-loan service
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Provision of training sessions

B E RIS 246

Provision of Wheelchair Aid on-loan service .
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Resopedia

BEREGEH

Resopedia, the short form for Rehabilitation Software Cyclopedia,
was established in 2009. It consisted of a collection of software
and related information which served as useful resources for
rehabilitation professionals working with people with disabilities
and elderly. The software and information were categorized,
hyperlinked and uploaded on internet for easy search and
reference. The set up of this on-line information platform brought
convenience and flexibility to rehabilitation professionals. The
service was free and had no membership restriction.

The materials posted on Resopedia were categorized according
to the characteristics of the software and targeted users. Users’
classification included people with physical disabilities, visual
impairment, hearing impairment, autism spectrum conditions,
intellectual impairment, cognitive impairment, communication
impairment, dyslexia, attention deficit and elderly. Software was
categorized under auxiliary control, auxiliary communication,
rehabilitation, early education, games and teaching tools. Most
of the collections were used in ipad and Android Apps platform.
Besides, keyword search function which allowed users to look for

relevant information more efficiently was also provided.
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In 2020-2021, over half of the collection of around forty programs
was related to auxiliary communication and auxiliary control which
enabled those with hearing, vision, speech disability and poor hand
function to keep in touch with outside world through information
technology. Besides, there was growing number of Apps related to
early education and a series of related programs were collected.
It facilitated pre-school children with various disabilities to learn
language and daily living skills through the funny and interesting
games.

Up till March 2021, over 1,080 pieces of software were classified
and uploaded on the library. A total of 1,600 login counted with over
9,000 service users benefited from the service during the year. The
information on rehabilitation software was bilingual to enable more
users to benefit from the collected Apps and software. Besides, to
enable the trainers to select appropriate training programs, user
guides and readme files were attached to the new collection.

BEREFREIRIL

The ‘Information Technology Solutions for Rehabilitation’ was
established in April 2017 with the support from Community Project
Grant of the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust. The project
consisted of two major services, namely ‘Computer Rehabilitation
Resource Station (C-Rehab)’ and ‘e-Workshop’. The former
concentrated on the design of online training software while the
latter focused on the development of hardware and hardware
cum software. The combination of these two services provided
a comprehensive and one-stop service for product design and
production. The ultimate goal was to enhance the independence
of people with disabilities and elderly through the utilization of
information technology.
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C-Rehab
M EEEIRE R,

Three major training zones namely ‘Training Zone for Intellectual
Disability’( H4& ),
Learning Difficulties’ ( &%£[& ) and ‘Training Zones for Elderly’

‘Training Zone for People with Specific

(E#1& ) which served people with intellectual disabilities, people
with learning disabilities and elderly respectively were established.
New training programs were developed on multi-platform from
traditional desktop computer, tablet and mobile so as to keep in
pace with the touch panel display with varying sizes. It enhanced
accessibility and enabled the training to be conducted under both
outdoor and home-based environment.

The impact of COVID-19 pandemic was slight as the members
could use all the training materials on the Station through computer
platform at their own place without geographical restriction. Though
all the classes in special schools were suspended, the students
of the special schools could keep up to use the educational and
training materials through home-based training by their parents
and carers which enabled the Station maintained a stable user
login rate.
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Besides, to keep up the service users’ learning and made ERIRN BB -

best use of the time during the pandemic period, over 100
anti-epidemic YouTube movies related to the coronavirus
and home exercises/games were collected and classified
in our Station on ad hoc basis. It included tips for
prevention of coronavirus, mask wearing techniques,
home stay & home exercises, community testing &
vaccination, personal hygiene & hand sanitization, home
and environmental hygiene, mental health, family games
etc., which provided fruitful and practical information
for our service users to fight with the disease. The
collections were welcomed by the members which
capturing their attention when staying at home to
combat the global pandemic of coronavirus.

The new programs on board game including
aeroplane chess ( #&{T# ) and Chinese checkers
(% F ) were designed. These two board
games had long history and familiar to most of
the Hongkongers. The games provided choices
for one to four and one to six players respectively,

encouraged their participation and interaction with

other gamers. The board game was a mind sport
that could improve the focus and concentration and
enhanced visual ability. These games were simple
with fun which suitable for both elderly and mentally
handicapped service users.
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By the end of 2020, the Google Chrome discontinued to support
Adobe Flash. As the majority of the training programs on C-Rehab
Station were designed in Flash platform, the change had great
impact on C-Rehab Station as the existing programs in Flash mode
were unable to operate under chrome browser. In face of such
change, the team had drawn up contingency plan and study the
best solution for migrating the existing programs to the new HTML
version so as to enable the users to continue using the programs
seamlessly. The most welcomed programs were prioritized for
adaptation and the same type of programs were integrated during
the migration. With the team’s concerted effort, over 200 programs
were enhanced and migrated to the new HTML version with clear
classification by end of March 2021. The usage and login rate were
maintained and members could keep up using the materials in the
Station.

During the reporting year, the membership size had grown steadily.
As at March 2021, the Station had a total of 2,150 members.
Over 43,000 persons benefited from the service and the monthly
login rate was over 5,000. Other than individual users, there were
members came from hospital, elderly institutions, special schools,
child care center, kindergarten, day activity center, rehabilitation
workshop cum hostel and other rehabilitation agencies.

Service evaluation was conducted through questionnaires so as to
solicit members’ comments and feedback on the training materials.
During the past year, a total of 197 completed questionnaires were
received. Over 90% of the respondents were satisfied with the
content, design, layout and effectiveness of the training programs.
The overall satisfaction rate was up to 98%. Besides, most of
the users commented that the training programs were useful and
expressed their appreciation for our effort for the development
of the Station. In addition to the use of questionnaires, a simple
pop-up short evaluation was attached to each program to solicit
users’ feedback in a quick and easy manner. During the reporting
period, over 6,000 pop-up short evaluation forms were received
and over 90% agreed that the training programs could enhance
the learning interest and motivation of the service users. It also

improved their common knowledge and daily living skills.
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e-Workshop
TS TIEE

The service focused on the design, fabrication and modification
of assistive devices and rendered clinical consultation to people
with disabilities and elderly to enhance their independence and
quality of living. During the reporting period, five new hardware
namely, optical switch with finger guard, hand support for optical
switch, hitch switch interface, big buddy button and micro mouse
interface; and one hardware cum software namely chopstick skill
training package were developed. These devices could facilitate
the users’ to access the IT and computer equipment and received
training for activities of daily living. Besides, new technology on the
rechargeable build-in lithium battery had been fully explored and
applied in the design and fabrication of new devices. It provided
stable power supply by the increased energy density and charging
speed.

Throughout the year, three hardware were enhanced with the
application of 3D printing technology which included chopstick
adaptor, bowl holder (3D new version) and head pointer. The
motion and acceleration detection sensor was successfully
installed in the small sized chopstick adaptor with the use of the 3D
printing technology. The exploration of 3D printing technology was
continued and new printers and multifarious printing materials were
sourced. With the use of 3D printing technology, the product could
be customized and tailor-made to meet individual needs as well as
to reduce the manpower, material costs and reduce the production
time. Moreover, the scope of the product could be widened to
benefit elderly, people with various disabilities and pediatric service
users.
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Service evaluation was conducted and a total of 40 completed
questionnaires were received. Over 80% of the respondents
were satisfied with the function, design, craftsman, durability,
price and user guidelines of the devices. Besides, over 80% of
the respondents agreed that the devices could meet the function
needs and reduced their reliance on others. In addition, over 80%
of the rehabilitation personnel and trainers agreed that the training
effectiveness was enhanced through using these training devices
and the overall satisfaction rate up to 90%. The positive results
showed that e-Workshop was able to fulfill its objective to meet the

training and learning needs of elderly and people with disabilities.

Due to the spread of coronavirus, the promotion through seminar
and talk was suspended and replaced by the production of
YouTube videos. Over 10 YouTube videos for the introduction
of rehabilitation and training aids, product demonstration,
rehabilitation exercises and special pediatric training were

uploaded in YouTube channel.

SERVICES REPORT BR#&iRs:

FEEBRHE - TEEHEM -+ R
EEE > BB\ RNRBERAEHE
miIhEe ~ REH FLMAE - B8
REMRERESIMERTIRE s BB\
O AR 75 (£ 1 & S m e R R FI Y F5
ZERIBEMBIIETE  INVEBB/\BK
WERTIEEMIIRASRFERRT
eI RN AE - BENREEIES
JURK - L IEm AR EER TEEHIR
BREREREAERATIRLES

o

AREEFE  EENEEEESUR
{E Youtube 52/ TE3REHR » TIEE
HEETEATRER  NEBERERE
BRI RN - DIRAIAIFER 2 1E
BEI#RA -

Statistics HETEIFE

Service provided

2020-2021

No. of clients served
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Jockey Club Digital Inclusion Centre

EESEBHEHEPO

Currently, the Centre mainly provided ‘e-Brain’ and regular service.
‘e-Brain’ rendered assessment as well as individual and group
training for elderly aged 60 or above with physical or cognitive
impairment. The service target was mainly the elderly referred by
the local Integrated Home Care Service Teams.

However, due to the impact of Covid-19, the services were
suspended in April, July and August. To reduce the room intensity
and the risk of infection, the number of participants of a group was
reduced from 4-5 to 2-3. Each participant had to measure body
temperature, wear mask and disinfect his/her hands with alcohol
hand sanitizer before and after exercise. The elderly and their
families supported the arrangement and were willing to cooperate.
In addition, all rooms, utilities and equipment were disinfected
regularly before and after the training to ensure cleanliness and

hygiene. There were 64 elderly attended the training in the year.

Besides, some interest group and activities were also terminated
or suspended due to COVID-19 epidemic. Similarly, the number
of participants in the interest group was also reduced from 6-8
to 3-5, and each participant had to measure temperature, wear
masks and disinfected his/her hands with alcohol hand sanitizer
when entering the Centre. In last year, the Centre only organized

5 interest classes for 38 service users.

ESSBUIRARPORFRENREE
2R TEINRE REENHORE
RIS R ) TER/RANTHRULBERSE
K B AN B B Y R B 4R A AT Al AR
B> MERNRBHREIEREANER
FaxERERBIRE  AMFIRAE
&MLV E A BRI AR -

BE—FXE 2019 HBMARBENE
Z RBEELR-7TAKSBAEKEEZ -
REEEENEEREMRERR @ &
HEASEABHRENTE RSN
BREZE=AMBNE - BABNET
EAFLFONWEEERE  REOS
LB ERAEEEFRESEF M
EELRRBHLERLZHELESES -
Fo - RLNFERERE - ARG IE
HRMBEERETERES  BR
BE - EBEHARTOARSHEERE
EH o

ZRHPOLOBRBAE BRXEH
2019 TR M AR E » S0 EB/INA
MEESBH AL ENLEHRT - @&
#h o EERIT R /NARI 2 B A SR R
RNENABE=ZZRAA > MBUENE
FEARLROXWESERE  BEEO
ERABBEFRESEF -HBE—
Fo POLREMRTY ABEEBY  AHE
=+ N\NRBERAESE -



It is foreseeable that the impact of the coronavirus would continue
for some time and centre-based service might be affected. The
program and training suspension adversely affected a lot to those
elderly users who mainly received our cognitive training and
rehabilitation exercise. To maintain the steady service provision to
the elderly, the Centre had already been granted a Capital Project
Fund from the Community Chest to procure some online materials
such as tablets and Wi-Fi-egg. The purpose was to provide the
IT equipment to carers and elderly for them to receive training
continuously at home, with the aids of our C-Rehab training
programme. At the same time, the elderly could keep in touch with
our occupational therapist through the online platform; on the other
side, the occupational therapist could realize the training progress
of the elderly and render proper advice to them. The enhanced
service would be commenced in the coming year.
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Community Occupational Therapy

G g e

To maximize the functional ability of people with disability and
elderly such that they can integrate into the community and
live independently with improved quality of life are the goals of
Community Occupational Therapy Service. The scope of the
service included:

(a) Assessment and training of activities of daily living;

(b) Home and work place assessment;

(c) Consultation on home and work place modification;

(d) Recommendation and prescription of assistive devices;
(e) Provision of home oxygen therapy; and

(f) Caregiver education.

Although the COVID-19 epidemic continued affecting the society,
the total number of service referral received in the reporting
period remained similar as compared with the previous year and
the out-reaching service had been resumed at a certain level
when the coronavirus condition become stable. Other than the
epidemic impact, the limited manpower recourse was another
reason of having a long waiting time for the service provision. In
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order to ensure all the urgent cases would receive service within a
reasonable waiting time, occupational therapist would contact all
referring worker once the referral received and prioritized all those
who were in special needs to provide priority service for them. In
order to protect both the client as well as our staff, all the infection
control measures would be taken.

The majority of referral received was for home safety assessment.
Besides, the number of referral related to information and
communication technology support services as well as the
configuration and training of electric wheelchairs remained similar
as last year; while the number of referrals received by the electric
wheelchair driving training courses had been reduced due to the
COVID-19.

The opinion of the service user was essential to further improve the
service. Users’ feedback and satisfaction had been assessed to
evaluate the effectiveness of the services. Over the last year, more
than 80% of service users agreed that there was improvement in
the performance of their daily living through environmental and/or
assistive device configurations. More than 80% of service users
had improved their physical function through prescribed home
fitness activities. More than 80% agreed that the service allowed
them to continue living in the community. More than 75% of service
users agreed that the service could enhance their self-confidence
and life satisfaction. 75% of the caregivers’ caring skills were
improved through the training provided to them. These findings
helped improving services quality and set direction for future
service development.
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Statistics #AETEIE

Service provided

2020-2021

No. of clients served

R BB AR EA RS

FTiR ALAR S B RIBAR
Provide assessment and training on activities of daily living
1R E B AR AR T A R IR 350
Recommend and provide appropriate assistive devices
e RAR A BB 553 220
Recommend home and/or work environment modification
RERER TS RENRE 2
Provide oxygen therapy
IR AR AR 100
Render training to caregivers

110

Occupational Therapy / Physiotherapy Services

WA | YIEAEIRTS

The service aimed to equip elderly, caregivers and volunteers
with knowledge and skills to enhance their functioning and/or
their caring skills through the organization of educational talks,
workshops and training.
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Due to the COVID-19 epidemic, some talks or seminars were
cancelled. However, the overall number of educational talks
delivered had not been affected much. In view of the release of the
control of social gathering and social distance, the performance of
coming year would be much improved. To tackle the hindrance to
provide educational talk in physical, the service was enhanced and
now fully available for both face to face delivery, and online based
or video sharing. The response to the online delivery was good
and part of the service user keen on asking for both face to face
and online seminar at the same time.

During the reporting period, Osteoarthritis care, physical exercise,
care and maintenance of low back still were the most popular
topics. In addition, two new topics related to manual handling
for spastic upper limbs due to stroke as well as the care and
prevention of pressure sore were developed. Two topics related to
caregiver occupational safety and health issue as well as the fall
prevention for the elderly were enhanced. These trainings were
delivered to caregivers, volunteers as well as home care workers.
With the availability of these knowledge and skills, the general
health condition of both the service providers as well as the service
recipients could be ensured. These new topics were promoted to
other related agencies and was much welcome by them.

Feedback from users was solicited through satisfaction survey.
The overall response was positive. 80% of the carers agreed that
their knowledge and skills in caring were enhanced and 70% of
the service users had acquired appropriate self care skills through

participating in these training.
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Statistics #HETEISF

Service provided

2020-2021

No. of clients served
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Organization of talks, workshops and training for elderly,
caregivers and volunteers 300
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Organization of activity group
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Integrated Home Care Services

Integrated Home Care Services provide home care and support
services for the elderly, people with disabilities, and families who
are incapable of looking after themselves and maintaining their
household’s normal functioning. The goal of Integrated Home Care
Services is to enable them to continue living in the community as
long as possible, and thus to accomplish the ultimate objective of
“Ageing in Place”. The services provided include personal care,
nursing care, bathing, meal delivery, escort, purchase of daily
necessities, household cleaning, rehabilitation exercises, etc. In
2020-2021, Integrated Home Care Services provided services to
141 users, and over 92% of service users were the elderly. Among
the elderly service users, there were 45 frail cases with moderate
and / or severe impairment, referred from the Social Welfare
Department. The others were ordinary cases that were assessed
with mild impairment.

As the population aged and the demand for community care
services increased, the Social Welfare Department referred 25 new
frail elderly cases to the Integrated Home Care team for relevant
services in the reporting period. Service focus was the provision of
professional services including rehabilitation exercises, cognitive
training, special nursing care, and caregiver support services. All

referred cases received multi-disciplinary assessment conducted
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by occupational therapist, physiotherapist, social worker, and
nurse. According to the assessment result and the discussion with
the user and his/her family, an individual care plan was drawn up
and reviewed regularly to meet the continuous changing needs of
the elderly.

Not only frail cases but also ordinary cases with rehabilitation
needs were benefited from our professional services. Occupational
therapist also served ordinary cases with rehabilitation needs.
Restorative and maintenance rehabilitation exercises, cognitive
training, environmental risk assessment and home modifications
were provided to help the elderly achieve an optimal level of
physical and cognitive function, minimize the deterioration, maintain
the independent living ability, enable frail cases to continue living
in a familiar community, and slow down or prevent ordinary cases
from becoming frail cases. Last year, the provision of home-
based and centre-based rehabilitation exercises was paused for
several months due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Nevertheless,
occupational therapist provided 75 in-home assessments and
training sessions and 25 centre-based rehabilitation exercises.
The total number of service users served was 118. Furthermore,
starting from March 2021, physiotherapy services were provided
to the elderly suffering from pain, hoping to relieve their discomfort
caused by pain.
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In view of the COVID-19 pandemic,

only necessary services, such as meal

delivery, escort, purchase of daily
necessities, and personal care, were
maintained from April 2020 to February
2021. Also, all social and recreational
activities were suspended during that
period. Even so, we kept collaborating
actively with charities, business
groups, and volunteer organizations
to arrange several concern home
visit activities. Anti-epidemic items
were distributed, and education on
pandemic prevention was provided
to service users. The key message was to let them feel the care
from the society, and enhance their confidence in fighting the
virus. During the reporting period, 8 group activities were held,
and 561 service users participated. Moreover, 24 singleton service
users with weak community support networks were referred to
participate in the “Care For the Elderly Living Alone Scheme “ while
13 volunteers rendered a total of 318 home visit and telephone
support. Each volunteer served 24 times on average.

The COVID-19 pandemic had undoubtedly imposed restrictions
on organizing physical activities. To provide service users
opportunities for participating various activities, digital technology
was adopted to help the elderly to receive useful information and
participate activities. A health webinar " Z5 K Z5EE | was first held
in the form of ZOOM. During the webinar, the orthopedist explained
how to take care of joints and taught the elderly to acquire the
knowledge and techniques to maintain their health. Eight older
people participated in the talk by using the iPad provided by us.
Most participants felt satisfied with that novel way of learning.
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Staff training had always been an essential part that the service
team attached considerable importance to. During the reporting
period, five training activities were organized for all staff, including
implementing anti-virus measures, adopting correct posture at
work, cognitive rehabilitation and resistance band rehabilitation
training. Moreover, a total number of 4 staff members were
subsidized to complete physiotherapy and occupational therapy
assistant courses, which aimed at increasing staff's knowledge and

techniques of health care support services.

To improve the quality of the service, the service team collects
feedback regularly from service users, including the degree
of satisfaction with the service. Last year, 53 user telephone
interviews were conducted and the result showed that over 98%
of the service users expressed satisfaction with the overall service

performance.
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Pilot Scheme on Home Care & Support for
Elderly Persons with Mild Impairment

%I GRet e e i ERANRE RS

The Pilot Scheme on Home Care and Support for Elderly Persons
with Mild Impairment, a three-year pilot project funded by the
Community Care Fund and administered by the Social Welfare
Department, commenced operation since December 2017. The
project aims to provide home care and support services to elderly
persons with mild impairment. The catchment area of the Scheme
is Wong Tai Sin district. The clientele served are elderly aged 60
or above, living in the community, wait listing for the Integrated
Home Care Services of our Association and with a monthly
household income not exceeding a specified percentage of the
relevant Median Monthly Domestic Household Income.

The services provided by the Scheme including meal delivery,
personal care, simple nursing care, physical exercise, household
cleaning, escort and purchase and delivery of daily necessities. As
at March 2021, services were rendered to 11 elderly users. Meal
delivery, escort and household cleaning were provided to them.
However, due to the impact of COVID-19 epidemic, the Scheme

could only provide basic and limited services of meal delivery,
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escort and emergency support service from April 2020 to March
2021. Household cleaning service was temporarily suspended in
this period.

Since there was shortage of epidemic prevention material in the
early stages, the staff of the Scheme had visited the elderly several
times with small gift such as masks, disinfection hand sanitation
and cleaning supplies, so that the elderly could maintain personal
Besides, in the Mid-
Autumn Festival, Christmas and the Lunar New Year, the Scheme

hygiene and reduce the risk of infection.

had also sent gifts to the elderly for celebrating the festivals at
home.

At the same time, in order to reduce the risk of infection, the
Scheme also arranged nurse to provide training to front-line staff to
strengthen their awareness of the epidemic and enhance their skill
in use of protective equipment.

To solicit feedback from the service users for further improvement
of the service, customer surveys were conducted twice a year. At
the end of 2020, we had collected 17 customer feedbacks with
positive result. All service users were satisfied with the services
provided.

We had been acknowledged by the Social Welfare Department in
September 2020 that the Community Care Fund extended the ‘Pilot
Scheme on Home Care and Support for Elderly Persons with Mild
Impairment ‘ for another 25 months starting from December 2020
to December 2022.
the elderly person in the community, the Scheme would continue

In response to the needs of the services for

to strive for further improvement of the services rendered.
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Care for the Elderly Living Alone

FREEE ARFSETE

With the rapid growth in elderly population in Hong Kong as well as
the Government policy of ‘Ageing in Place’, there was increasing
concern over the health and home safety of the living alone elderly.
To address this issue, the Care for the Elderly Living Alone Service
had been launched since 1990.

The service aimed to provide social and psychological support
for living alone elderly as well as those with inadequate support
from their family. Through regular visits, volunteers could provide
emotional and psychosocial support to elderly so as to reduce their
sense of loneliness and widen their social network. Volunteers
also attended to the elders’ health conditions and home safety.
Any specific observations, such as symptoms of depression,
home safety problems and deterioration of health conditions were
reported and follow-up actions were taken immediately to ensure
the elderly could continue living in the community safely and

independently as well as to improve their quality of life.

During the reporting period, the new round of service collaboration
with the Nursing School of Hong Kong Polytechnic University
was deferred under the impact of COVID-19 epidemic. Since
the epidemic was unstable, alternate service delivery mode was
explored. Instead of visiting the elderly, the volunteers were
arranged to provide emotional and social support via telephone
contact. Sixteen volunteers were recruited via Agency for Volunteer
Service and Social Career to deliver service to thirty-two frail
elderly people referred by our Integrated Home Care Service
Team. A small group pre-visit training on service introduction, tips

on phone caring support and communication skills were arranged

to participated volunteers. Volunteer sharing sessions were
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organized to provide opportunity for sharing the difficulties and

conducting service evaluation.

During the evaluation meeting, over 90% of the volunteers
expressed that the service could enhance their understanding of
the needs and daily living of frail elderly and over 80% expressed
that the phone caring could enhance their communication skills
with frail elderly. At the same time, over 80% of the elders received
phone support reported that the service enabled them to reduce
loneliness and had better understanding of the precaution and

progress of the pandemic.

Moreover, 30 elderly users referred by our Wong Tai Sin Home
Care Team were visited by our nurse volunteer. During the
past year, through these visits, health consultation, advice on
medication, personal hygiene, geriatric illnesses and balanced diet
were rendered so as to enable them to lead an independent and
healthy life in the community.

Upon the stability of the COVID-19, the service collaboration with
the Nursing School of Hong Kong Polytechnic University would be
conducted. The arrangement of primary health care practicum for
their nurse students to provide health and nursing services through
regular home-based visit for our frail elderly service users.
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Service provided

2020-2021

No. of clients served
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PR LIRS BXRBEAR
Home visit paid
- 40
Keh
Health check up provided
Bt S 30
Training provided for volunteers
BT IR 20
Sharing sessions organized for volunteers
BRETHES 20
Provide support and guidance to volunteers
BETRUTEREN 20
No. of referrals made to appropriate agencies
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Integrated Vocational Rehabilitation Service Centre

The Endeavor

FEHERERBRL - BERPO

Since the commencement of operation in 2002, The Endeavor
aims to provide quality vocational rehabilitation services for people
with disabilities with the ultimate goal of enabling them to proceed
to supported or open employment as far as possible. The capacity
of the Centre is 200.

The Centre provided a wide range of centre-based and outreaching
work training opportunities for the service users. Various kinds of
vocational skill training including packaging, direct sales, laundry,
catering, office work, and gardening were operated to suit the
varying abilities and interests of the service users. The Centre
collaborated with business sectors and local networks to solicit
training opportunities for our service users. To provide a simulated
work environment for the service users and prepare them for open
employment, commercial practice was adopted. The service users
were required to have shift duty, work overtime and/ or during
weekends when needs arose.

In 2020-2021, the Centre services were seriously affected by the
COVID-19 epidemic and suspended from May 2020 to February
2021. Apart from reducing social contact in the Centre, various
infection control measures were implemented, such as stepping
up cleansing, checking the body temperature of staff and service
users, providing alcohol hand sanitizer, placing sanitizing mats at

the entrances, etc. In addition, weekly telephone or video calls
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were arranged to service users or family members to update their

service needs.

The Centre’s business volume was around $1,400,000, which had
decreased by 50% as compared with 2019-2020. The net training
allowance, excluding incentive payment granted to service users,
was about $435,000 which had reduced 63% as compared with the
past year. During the service suspension period, most of the job
orders were cancelled or some had to be handled by staff with the
view to maintain the training opportunities for service users when
the Centre service resumed. The COVID-19 Emergency Fund
of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust was successfully
applied and several special anti-epidemic subsidies were released
to service users to reduce their financial difficulties.

Besides vocational training, the Centre also paid due concern on
the training of service user’s daily living skills. In 2020-2021, all the
training activities, such as training on personal hygiene, emotion
control, spending leisure and money management were operated

through web-based social media, such as WhatsApp or YouTube.

To enrich the quality of life of the service users, various social,
recreational activities and festival celebrations were organized.
During the reporting period, all the outdoor activities were cancelled
due to the COVID-19, only the special delivery of rice dumplings,
mooncakes and gifts for Dragon Boat Festival, Mid-Autumn
Festival and Christmas were held as scheduled. In response to the
COVID-19, tailor-made care packs were distributed through home
visits to the service users to reduce their stress and anxiety in face
of the pandemic.
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Family participation and support play an essential role in the
rehabilitation of people with disabilities. To keep the family
members closely informed of the progress of the service
users, regular parent meetings and activities were organized.
In 2020-2021, three parent meetings mainly focused on the
special arrangement under COVID-19 pandemic were organized.

The Centre started to launch the Work Extension Program (WEP)
since February 2015 to address the extra service needs arose
from old age or deterioration in work abilities of the service users.
The existing WEP capacity is fifteen. Through this arrangement,
aged service users could enjoy a continuation of care and training
in a familiar environment. As a safety measure, the WEP members
were encouraged to stay at home and most of the WEP activities

were suspended in the past year.

In view of the continuation of COVID-19, service forecast and
staff training in the coming year would focus on the skills to work
with person with autism spectrum disorder and ex-mentally ill, as
well as use of Zoom and other IT communication platform would
probably be arranged.
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Eco Farm

EREH

SERVICES REPORT BR#&iRs:

With the support from the Environment and Conservation Fund,
The Eco Farm commenced operation since September 2013.
The Farm is located at Leung Hong Lane, Tuen Mun with the
size of about 2,060 square metres. Besides the provision of
various kinds of horticultural training opportunities for people with
disabilities, the Farm also aims at arousing public awareness of
greening, environmental protection and social integration.

The Farm provides various forms of service to people with
disabilities and the local community, including the lease of
planters, organization of horticultural workshops, exhibition of farm
production, and organization of activities, to promote environmental
protection and green living. Several service users of The Endeavor
and the Work Extension Program users were assigned to different
work training in the Farm, including watering of the crops, weeding,
cultivating of seedling and repair work. With this arrangement,
social integration between the public and the service users could
be enhanced. However, the Farm was temporarily closed due to
COVID-19 and training for service users was suspended from May
2020 to February 2021. The users stopped attending the work
training in the Farm. The Farm could only maintain operation in a
limited scale by staff and volunteers for the planting and harvesting
of the farm produce.

In view of the continuation of COVID-19, the Farm would resume
service such as the horticultural activities for the service users
by phase when the epidemic situation had stabilized. We would
continue monitor the situation closely and determine when
to launch the promotional activities to the kindergartens and
organizations in the district to enhance the future development of
the Farm.
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Supported Employment Service

B8 B el 3R B 75

The operation of Supported Employment Service, subvented by
the Social Welfare Department, was first started in March 1995.
It is a form of employment for people with disabilities, which allows
them to work in an integrated and open setting with the provision
of ongoing support. The major clientele served are ex-mentally
ill, physically handicapped, and mentally handicapped persons.
The service provides pre-job assessment, skills training, job
counseling, on-the-job follow-up support. The service capacity
is 94.

The service adopts the individual job placement model in the
provision of job opportunities in the open market and related
training for service users. During the reporting period, job
placement was successfully arranged for 61 people with
disabilities, and 29 of them were able to retain their jobs for 6
months or more with an average salary of $9,077. With the
appropriate job matching and referrals made by the service unit,
employees with disabilities performed jobs of various types which
include pamphlet distribution worker, clerk, retailing, customer
service, dishwasher, waiter, security guard, packer, cleaner, and
stock keeper.

The service had been operating the Car Beauty Service under a
mobile crew model in Tuen Mun since March 2002 which aimed
at providing training opportunities for service users and equipping
them for open employment. Apart from that, the service unit also
provided different kinds of employment skill training that matched
the needs of the open job market, including mock interview,
resume building, pre-employment preparation, letter shopping,
data entry, map reading & route planning, cleaning, and pamphlet
distribution to enhance the users’ working capacity and work-
related knowledge. 15 service users received job training during
the reporting period. Three of them had job interviews after
receiving job training and two of them have secured job positions

in the open market.

To further enhance the competitiveness of the unemployed service
users in the job market, the service also organized 2 Foundation
Certificate in Prevocational Induction Courses for Disabled
Persons (Part-time) funded by The Employees Retraining Board
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(ERB) in September and November 2020 respectively. Most of the
participants satisfied with the course and commented that it did not
only helped them improve their job searching skills and motivation,
but also had a positive impact on enhancing self-awareness and
self-management. On the other hand, their self-confidence was
enhanced after the course finished and they had a clearer goal in
setting the work direction. All these contributed to their success in
open employment in the long run. 2 out of 7 service users took up

open employment after the training courses.

The service unit had been allocated additional resources from the
Social Welfare Department since 1 December 2018 to strengthen
various measures to promote the employment of people with
disabilities. One of the measures is to provide job attachment
allowances for those service users who attend the job attachment
programme. Despite the adverse impact of epidemic, one service
user was arranged to attend the job attachment programme in
February and March 2021 and assigned to be a clerk trainee.
The job attachment not only helped the service user to gain skills
and cultivate good working habits in a real working environment,
but also helped to boost her confidence and motivation in job
searching. The service user had secured a full-time job as a

cashier after the programme.

Affected by the Coronavirus Disease pandemic, the service
adjusted special arrangements such as work from home on a
rotating schedule and suspension of face-to-face meetings in
order to protect the service users and staff from infection risk
of the disease. Nevertheless, the staff continued to contact the
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service users actively through telephone and other social media
technology for work and emotional support. The service unit also
worked with other charities and organizations to distribute epidemic
prevention bags and rice bags to service users as gifts.

Moreover, when the local epidemic situation continued to subside
and became more stable, the service unit was able to organize
several in-person groups. For example, the “Interpersonal Skills,
Stress Management, and Emotion Management” group helped
service users better cope with the challenges and stress that
the COVID-19 outbreak posed to their daily lives. To encourage
service users to learn new abilities and enhance positive energy
even though they needed to stay at home, the “Smartphone
Workshops” was held to teach service users to use Zoom and
basic smartphone applications, so that the users could maintain
social contact with other people and participate online activities
organized by the service unit.

During the reporting period, online festival hand craft making
activities were developed in response to the negative impacts
caused by the reducing social gathering and trips outside home
during the pandemic. Some of the content, such as the Christmas
dessert recipe, was also posted in the service’s newsletter and
directly distributed through social media applications for users
who were not able to attend and enjoy the online activities. These
activities had received positive responses and grounded valuable

experience for the future service development and program design.
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Staff development programmes were organized to enhance the
staff’s knowledge and work skills for the improvement of the
services rendered. During the reporting period, staff attended
courses and seminars covering different topics including Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance, Discrimination Ordinance, Concepts
and Practices on “Positive Behavior Support”, and Enhancing
the Awareness towards the Employment Needs of Persons with

Disabilities and Persons Recovered from Work Injuries.

To reach more potential service users, different promotional
strategies were implemented. The service unit cooperated
with other organizations that serve people with disabilities by
advertising the service on their publications and providing them
the service pamphlets for distribution to their users. Though it was
not permitted to physically visit different organizations during the
COVID-19 pandemic, the staff continued to deliver talks to potential
users and related staff via Zoom meeting to keep promoting the

service.

Throughout the past twenty-six years, a close liaison was
established with some employers. They had confidence in
employing people with disabilities and usually, they gave our
service users priority for job interviews whenever vacancies were
available. In the coming future, the effort would be put to explore
more training and employment opportunities for service users such
that they could integrate into the community and live independently.
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The Centre continued to provide training and work opportunities
for people with disabilities in word processing, data input, design,
printing, mailing and web page updating under a simulated work
environment with the ultimate goal of assisting them to proceed
to open employment. Through the engagement in gainful work,
the independence and dignity of people with disabilities could be
enhanced and they could be integrated into the community.

The Centre business in the reporting year was severely affected by
the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. The cancellation of fairs
and exhibitions caused the drop of business volume as almost all
the data input orders were lost. Fortunately, the Centre was still
able to recruit a few new business customers and kept up some
existing business partners. The Library of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong continued to provide data input order for the Centre,
and desktop publishing and design orders through alliance with
Hospital Authority and a few printing companies were secured.
These sustained the job orders for the disabled people, however,

the income allowance for each of them was reduced a large extent.

With the one off allocation from The Community Chest, the service
promotion had been launched. A new website for service promotion
was established and the related google search promotion
campaign would be launched in the coming year.
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Service users received allowance that was calculated on piecework
basis. During the reporting period, 65% of the trainees agreed that
the allowance could increase their earning, 70% of them agreed
that the activities provided by the Centre could help them to regain
their dignity and 70% of users were more ready adapt to the
demand of the open market through simulated work environment.

With the staff turnover in early 2021, the management committee
conducted a service review and restructuring of the Centre
operation so as to enhance the service effectiveness. In the coming
year, the business performance would be reviewed and service
plan would be formulated for its sustainability and feasibility.

Statistics #RETEF 2020-2021
Service provided No. of clients served
PR LIRS BXRBEAR

Provide work opportunities for people with disabilities in data input, desktop
publishing, graphic design, web page design, printing and mailing 29
REHRATREERBA - KEHM » &5 BB - KB LRV TFERS

Provide work related training opportunities for people with disabilities

BERARET (el it e 29
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Independent Living Fund
ReeEE

The Fund aimed to provide financial
support to people with disabilities in form
of interest free loan for the purchase of
rehabilitation aids, which could enhance
their independence as well as quality
of life. The Fund had operated for over
twenty years and the upper limit of the
loan was raised to HK$70,000.00 with the —
maximum repayment period of 48 months.
The loan was to be repaid by monthly
installment. A guarantor was required for
each application so as to ensure that the loan could be repaid as
scheduled. Each application was examined by the Management
Committee of the Fund and subsequently to be endorsed by
the Executive Committee of the Association before the loan was

granted.

During the reporting period, a total of eight applications were
received and seven of them were physically handicapped persons
and one was hearing impaired person. The equipment applied
to purchase were power wheelchair, power-assisted wheelchair,
motor car and hearing aid. One applied for the maximum of
HK$70,000 and the other applied from $7,000-$50,000. All
applications were approved. Up till March 2021, there were 20
outstanding borrowers, advice and support were rendered to
enable them to repay the loan as scheduled. One outstanding
borrower expressed difficulties and extension of the repayment
period was arranged for him. On the whole, the operation of the
Fund was smooth.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, two rounds of one-
off one month repayment exemption scheme were held in August
and December 2020 so as to relieve the financial burden of the
loan applicants. A total of 17 and 18 applications among the 20
total debtors applied for the one month loan waive due to financial
difficulties. The result was encouraging and all applications were
approved. The exemption amount ranged from $550 to $2,000 and
the total approved amount was over $44,000.
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During the reporting year, new promotion pamphlet was designed
and sent to rehabilitation agencies, special schools, hospitals,
disabled self-help groups, family service centres and social
security field units. Service promotion was also launched through
our web site and news bulletin.

Service evaluation was conducted through questionnaires which
were sent to all successful applicants. The result was encouraging
with 100% of the respondents satisfied with the application
procedures, the usefulness of the equipment applied and the
approved amount. All of the applications found the equipment very
useful in enhancing their independence as well as their quality of
life. As a whole, the overall satisfaction rate up to 100%
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Statistics HRETEIF

Service provided

2020-2021

No. of clients served

B mHEt 8l

PR LIRS BXRBEAR
Inquiries
o 40
B R
Applications received
8
SEAEES
Provision of interest free loan
2t BER 8
Provision of advice on the selection of appropriate devices
BREAEARRME 8
Assessment of social & financial condition of the applicants
STIEEREE AR B RACE ST 8
Provision of advice and support to outstanding borrowers
RESERA TR B 20
Loan repayment exemption scheme
85
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MEMBERS AND VOLUNTEERS

EERET

The implementation of our services was largely affected by the
involvement and participation of our volunteers. To actualize
the mission and vision of the Association in utilizing professional
volunteers from engineering, medical and related fields in service
delivery, a Volunteer Management Committee was established
which aimed to explore and create more volunteer opportunities
especially in medical and engineering fields in all service units of
the Association.

Due to the outbreak of pandemic, the volunteer management
committee meeting was conducted via zoom platform. The
volunteer data and statistics including numbers of new and old
volunteer participation, service hours, service classification and
number of beneficiaries from all service units in the reporting
period were compiled. The comparison of the volunteer service
statistics for the past three years was also consolidated. It
provided a comprehensive picture on the volunteer participation
and volunteer development in the Association. The consolidated
report also facilitated the planning of volunteer work in the coming
future. Besides, the standard volunteer evaluation form was used
by all service units and a total of seventeen evaluation forms
were received. The overall result to the four standard evaluated
questions including ‘to achieve the purpose of participation in
volunteer work, the understanding toward the service users, the
feeing and experience gained through the volunteer activities, and
the overall logistics and arrangement of the volunteer programs’
were rated very satisfactory to satisfactory. Through the evaluation,
it enabled us to understand the experience and satisfaction on their
participation to our volunteer work as well as to serve as valuable
data for the Association to develop multifarious volunteer tasks to
meet the need of volunteers, to benefit our service users as well as

cultivated the volunteerism in the community.

Volunteer recruitment exercises were launched in conjunction with
the service nature of different service units so that the volunteers
recruited could utilize their skills and expertise. In year 2020-2021,
27 new volunteers joined our Association. As at March 2021, the
Association had a total of 360 members and volunteers. Orientation
was organized for new comers so that they could have a thorough
understanding of the services operated by the Association.
Relevant trainings such as communication skills with the elderly,
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understanding of the power wheelchair users, power wheelchair
driving skill were organized to equip them with the essential skills
to carry out voluntary work. In addition to the provision of volunteer
services for our Association, nurse volunteers were also referred to
provide health check-up and consultation services to other elderly

service agencies on regular basis.

To express our recognition for their devotion and enthusiasm to
voluntary services, one volunteer was nominated for Gold Award,
six for Silver Award and fourteen for Bronze Award of the Volunteer
Movement organized by the Social Welfare Department in the
year 2020-2021. During the same period, two volunteers received
Outstanding Volunteer Award and four volunteers received Long
Service Volunteer Award presented by our Association.

To express our gratitude for their continuous support, a specially
designed portable mask container was distributed to members
and volunteers. News bulletin was published to keep members
and volunteers informed of the progress of the Association. To
facilitate smooth operation of the services, an updated member
and volunteer database had to be kept through regular updating of

their personal information.
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Statistics AETEIF

Service provided

2020-2021

No. of clients served

AR (AR 75 BXRBEAR
Training & activities organized
P 27

BIRIER
Recruitment of volunteers

27
BEHEL
Orientation organized for new volunteers
sy TIHNA 2
Organized Volunteer Award

27

SR T RE

B U

EERETI IS



I SOCIAL ENTERPRISE ft&4%

SOCIAL ENTERPRISE
=piES

The CLEAN Laundry
RS KRFEL ]

The CLEAN Laundry, which located at Tuen Mun Nam Fung
Industrial City, is the first social enterprise operated by the
Association. The venture aims at achieving the social objectives
of creating employment and training opportunities for people with
disabilities and also facilitating their integration into the community.
In order to enhance the sustainability of the venture, The CLEAN
Laundry has operated in business and self-financing mode.

In the reporting period, the Laundry was temporarily closed due
to COVID-19, the operation line was moved to The Endeavor.
As such, the business volume of The CLEAN Laundry was
decreased about 21 % as compared with 2019-2020. Owing to
the suspension of training for service users, all the laundry works
were done by the Centre staff. Besides, in order to reduce the risk
of infection, community walk-in and laundry delivery services were
also stopped.
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In view of the continuation of COVID-19, The CLEAN Laundry
would gradually resume its service. We would carefully review
our pricing strategy to the customers to maintain a competitive
and cost-effective laundry service, and efforts would be put on
soliciting new customers, especially the elderly homes in the
district. In addition, community walk-in and laundry delivery would
be resumed under a phased approach when the epidemic situation
had stabilized. Various infection control measures would be
implemented continuously to prevent the staff and service users
from infection by the contaminated clothing. The CLEAN Laundry
would continue monitor the situation closely and determine when
to embark on a full resumption of normal business.
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERING AMD MEDICAL WOLUNTEER SERVICES

EEPORT OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

The members of the Executive Cormittee have pleasure in submitting their annwal
report and the audited financial statements of the Association for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Assoclation 1s an incorporated voluntary and non-profit making body. Its
principal activity is provision of engineering and medical professlonal services
to needy individuals and organizations.

BRESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results for the year endsed 31 March 2021 and the state of affairs of ths
Azspoclation at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages & to
28.

PLANT AND EQUIFMENT

Mowvements in plant and eguipment during the year are st ocut in Kote 4 to the
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserve accounts of the Association during the year
are set ouk in Mote & to 28 to the financial statements,

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The committee members of the Asscociation during the year were as follows:-

Mr Law Chit wai

Dr Chan Hok Sum

Mr Chan Yuk Keung

Mr Cheung Kin Man

Mz Hong Wai Chi

Mr Fong Wai Lap

Mr Leung Ewok Fai

Mz Cheung Kam Ling Margaret
Mr Ewan Fu Kel, Larry

M5z Ewan Tak Ying, Estella

In accordance with article 34 of the Association’s Articles of Association, all

cormittes members will retire and, being eligible, offer themsalves for re-
election biennially at the annual general meeting.
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Page Z
ASEOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

REEFORT OF THE COMMITTEE HEMBERS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 MRRCH 2021

= Centinued =

COMMI MEMB

E
SO b

RS" MATERIAL INTERESTS TN TRANSACTICHNS, ARRANGEMENTS  AND
A E i 2 iE ASSOCIE OPERE

He Etramsacticons, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Azzociation's operation te which the Association was a party and in which a
committes member of the Rssociation had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, =ubsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MAMAGEMENT CONTRACTS

He contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the operation of the Assocciation were entered into or
axisted during the year.

BUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Chan & Man, Certified

Public Accountants (Practising), who retire and;, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Executive Committee

Vibo

Mr Cheung EKin Man, ?lfe Chairman

pated: 7§ OCT 2001

Hong Kong
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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS' REFPORT

TO THE HMEMBERS OF
ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
Incorporated in Hong ¥ong and limited uarantee

OFINION

We have audited the financial atatements of Association For Engineering And
Medical Volunteer Services (the “Assoclation®™) set out on pages & to 28, which
copprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
supmary of significant accounting policies,

In our opiniocn, the financial =statements giwve a trus and fair wview of the
financial position of the Association as at 31 March 2021, and of its fipancial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HEFRSs3") issued by the Hong Fong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HEICPA™) and have been properly prepared in
corpliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OFINION

We conducted our aodit in accordance with Hong EKong Standards on Auditing
(“HESR2"} l=zsued by the HEICPA. Our regponaibilities under those atandards are
further described in the Auditors® HResponsibilities for the Aodit of the
Fipancial Statements section of our repork. We are Iipdependent of the
Association in accordance with the HEICPA's Code of Ethics for Professlonal
hocountants {(“the Code™), and we&  have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

OTHER IHFORMATION

The committes members are responsible for the other information. The other
infermation comprises the information included in the Report of the Committee
Members, but does not include the fipancial statements and ocur auditors' reporct
thereon.

Our opinion on the financisl statements does not cowver the other information and
we do not express any form of asawrance conclusicn thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing 3o, consider whether the other
information 1s materially inconsistent with the financial statements orf our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or octherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior
to the date of this auditors' report; we conclude that thera is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We
hawve nothing to report in thi= regard.
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INCEFEMDENT AUDITORS' REFORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ASSOCTIATION FOR ENGIKEERIMG AMD MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

(Incorporated in Hong Hong and limited by guarantes)

= Continued -

BRESPONSIEILITIES OF COMMITTEE MEMEERS FOR THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

The committes members are responsible for the preparation of the f[inancial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HEFRSs issued by
the HEICPA and the Hong Kong Companies COrdinance, and for such internal control
as the committea meambers determine 1is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial atatementa, the committes members are responsible for
assessing the Association’s abllity to continue as & going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the geing concern
basis of accounting unless the committee members elther intend to liquidate the
Assooiation or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but teo do
0.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Dur objectives are to ocbtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from materiazl misstatement, whether due to fraod
or errcr, and te issue an avditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Feasconable assurance is & high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that
an audit conducted in accordance with HESAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. HMisstatements can arise from frauwd or error and
are considered material if, indiwidually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

Az part of an audit in accordance with HESA3, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit., We also:=

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statemeants, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cwr opinicon. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
iptentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the owverride of internal
control.

- Ubtaim an understanding of internal contrel relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Assocciation’s internal control.

- Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies wsed and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclesures made by the
coEmittes membera.

BN Ul
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS e—
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Fage 5
TNCDEFENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

70 THE MEMBERS OF
ASSQCIATION FOR EMGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

[Inserporated in Hong BEong and limited by guarantes)

ADDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOH THE AURTT OF THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

= Continued -

-  Conelude on the appropriateness of the committes members' use of the going
concern basls of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uwncertainty exists related to events or conditlians that
mair cast significant doubt on the Asscoclation's ability to continue as a
== 8 o CORCEIN. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exXists, we are
pagquired to draw attentien in our auditors® report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequata, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our aunditors' report. Howswver, future
evants or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a
going concern.

- Ewaluate the owerall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transaction=s and events in & manner that achieves
fair presentation,

We communlcate with committes members regarding, amobg other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
ang significzant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit,

= E ] F}
ertified Public Accountants

[Practising]

Homg Hon

sate: 78 OCT 2021
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ASSOCIATION FPOR ENGINEERIMNG AMD MEDICAL WOLUNTEER SERVICES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHEMSIVE IKCOME
FORE THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

THCOME
Designated donations:
Others

Subventions:

Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust

Community Chest

Eocial Welfare Department HESAR Government
Lotkerias Fund
Block Grant
Compunity Care Fund

Subventions from Employees Retraining Board utilized

Service income

OTHER REVEMUE
Interest income
Sundry income

EXPENDITURE
Salaries
Frovident fund contributions and charges
Frovision for long service payment
Frogramme and services expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Frinting, postage and stationery
Travelling
Telephone and fax
Electricity and water
Insurance
Rent and ratas
Cleaning
Depreciation
Advertising
General expenses
Annpual general meeting and dinner
Equipment and uniform
Staff training
Motor wvehiclas
Audit fee
SWD Fund

SURFLUS FOR THE YEAR

Time Limited Post Grant

FINANCE E17 I

Page &

2021 2020

HES HES
1,130,033 1,203,478
2,208,221 1,811,224
1,937,760 1,710, 200
21,308,254 19,613,915
32; T':":' =

20, 000 99,474
291, 000 253, 000
240, 168 363, 308
54, 996 52,337
5,410,932 7,933,162
421 15,482

3,510 11,120
ijiﬁﬁgiggg ijrial;iﬁﬁ
19,135,943 17,776, 581
1,091,118 1,296,858
(112, 0TE) (47,851)
5, 664, 450 T,134, 634
280,284 351,045
187,873 158,853
49, 976 250,419
148,436 105,445
186,971 466, 342
132, 986 102,412
1,826,505 1,689,544
261, 080 286,125

G, 350 2,577
27,349 29, 060
258, 036 156,108

- 20, 490

411,443 647,163
T.150 400

a9, 911 91,335
34,500 32,000
18,853 Z3,865
(25, ATE,ZAR)  (30,55E,9TE)
3,527,748 2,674,824
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AMND MEDICAL VOLUWTEER SERVICES
STATEMENT OF COMPFREHENSIVE IRCOME
FOR THE YEAF ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
2021 2020
HES HES
- Continued -
SURFLUS FOR THE YEARR 3,527,745 2,674,824
TRANSFERS FROM/ (TO) :
General Fund 03,316 52,251
Service Foundation Fund (1,057,421) (1,018, 294)
Supperted Employment Services {218,101) {378,442}
Jockey Club Desktop Publishing Centre 121,856 47,778
Homa Cara Sarvicas (1,006,452) {365,999}
The Endaavor (1,178,707) [(T77,006}
Laundry Workshop (11,253) (37,401}
Jockey Club Digital Inclusion Centre (36, 455) 57,210
Electric Wheelchair Repalir Clinic and Resource Centre {14&,972) {236, 28%9)
EC Farm = Vocatlanal Training and
Horticulture Educational Scheme 12,171 28,062

Community Care Fund — Pllot Scheme on

Home Care and Support for Elderly Persons

with Mild Impairment (44, 391) (45, 6949)
Social Welfare Department Time-Limited

PFosts for Elderly and Rehabilitation

Servicesn (22,700} -

ACCTMULATED BRLANWNCE AT END OF YEARR e =

TN A g a 1o -4 4 1§

The annexed notes form an integral part of these fipancial statements
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERIMG AMND MEDICAL WOLUNTEER SERVICES

STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION
A5 AT 31 MARCH 2021

NOTE
HON-CURRENT ASSETS
Loans to disabled 3
Plant and eguipment 4

CURRENT RSSETS
Prapayments and other receivables
UDtility deposits
Current portion of loans to disabled 3
Cash and bank balances

CUERRENT LIARILITIES
Bank owerdraft
Bccounts payable
Rccruals
Eeceipta in advance

MET CURRENT ASSETS

HON=CUREENT LIABILITIES
Long =service payments obligation 5

TOTAL RASSETS

FINANCE E17 I

Fage B

2021 200

“HEE HES
191,925 177,887
10,143 5,153
Z0Z, 068 183,040
711,350 1,501,713
168,030 168, 030
195,985 291,018
21,912, 467 18,816,566
EE! ;Eﬂ,ﬁif Eﬁ.*:”.rifﬁ
- 25,576

837,847 410,338
34,500 32,000
38,351 79,218
1910, 638) (347,133)
22,077,134 20,230,195
(188,475) {300, 553)
22,090,727 20,112, 682

B U
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERIMG AND MEDICARL. WOLUMTEER SERVICES

STATEMENT OF FIMAMCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

HOTE
- Continued -

Bepresented by:
Zeneral Fund i
Service Foundation Fund 7
Independent Living Fund B
Supported Employment Services 9
Jockey Club Desktop Publishing Centre 10
Homa Care Services 11
The Endeavor 12
Laundry workshop 13

Social Welfare [Department

Lump Sum Grant Reserwve 14
Spoclal Welfare Department Provident Fund 15
Social Welfare Department Central Ttems 16
Spcial Welfare Department Block Grant 17
Social Welfare Department

Rent and Batas 18
Community-based support projects for Persons

with disabilities and their families 15
Sgcial Welfare Development Fund 20
Jockey Club Digital Inclusion Centre 21
Electric Wheelchair Repair Clinic and

Resource Centre 22
EC Farm - Vocational Traiming and

Horticulture Educational Scheme 23

Community Care Fund = Pllot Scheme on

Home Care and Support for Elderly Persons
Wwith Mild Impairment 24
Training Subsidy Programme for children on

the waiting list of subwvented pre-school

rehabilitation services 25
Time=-Limited Posts for Elderly &

rehabilitation Services 28
TOTAL FUHDS

The financial statementzs on ages b to ZB were
Executive Committee on ] § ﬂEFIﬁi

N oo

Mr Cheung Ein Man J

Vice Chairman

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

58

2021

6,217,258
2,540,890
278,743
{1,819, 620)
528, 150
76, 810

75, 743

11,111,451
1,860,294
142,917
401,209
(787,773)
130, 686
268, 237
(48,01le)
1,628, 483

(589, 724)

(47,709}

22,700

CEEEmEErTE=

FPaga 2

S,232,483
2,585,108
278,853
(1,697, 764)
528, 150
50,573
64, 430

10,437,054
1, 689, 957
142,917
329,078
{770,607
130, 666
387,079
{84,511}
1,479,511

(977,553
132,700}

(110}

approved by the members of
1 and were signed on its behalf

Ms Hong Wal Chi
Committese member
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ASSOCTIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
STATEMENT OF CHAWGES IM FUMDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2021 2020

“HEF THES
Total eguity at 1 BApril 20,112, 682 17,858,079
Surplus for the year 3,527,749 2,674,824
Refund to Government {1,505,4B6} (420,221}
Exemptlon to loan to disabled (44, 218) =
Total eguity at 31 March 22,080,727 20,112, 6B2

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

BN Ul
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERIMNG RMND MEDICAL WILUNTEER

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2021

CBSH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus for the year
Adjustments for:
Frovision for long service payment
Interest income
Depreciation

Operating surplus before
mavemants in working capital
Changes i1n loans to disabled
Changes in prepayments and other receivablas
Changes in utility deposits
Changes in accounts payable
Changes in accruals
Changes in receipts in advance

Cash generated from cperations
Refund to Government
Examption to loan to disabled
Het cash generated from cperating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM TNVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments to acguire plant and egquipment
Interest income received
Het cash (used in)/ (generated [rom)
investing activities
HMET CHAMNGES IN CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALEMTS

CASH BND CASH EQUIVALEWNTS BROUGHT FORWARD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CABRIED FORWARD

ANABLYSIS OF THE BALAKCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and in hand
Bank overdraft

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

A

SERVICES

Page 11

2021 2020
3,527,748 2,674,824
{112,078} (47,851)
[421) {15,462}

£, 360 2,571
3,421,610 2,614,068
B0, 996 139,140
790,363 267,593

= {1,200}

427,508 (1B6, 361}
2,500 3,000

(40, BER) 12,536
4,682,110 2. 848,776
{1,505, 486} (420,221}
(44,218} =
(11,350} {7,730}
421 15,482
(10,329} 7,752
3,121,477 2,436,307
18,780,980 16,354, 663
21,912,467 18,790,990
2021 2020

HES HES
21,912,467 18,816,566
- (25,576}
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ASSOCTIATION FOR EMGIMEERIMG AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

HMOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMEMNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

1. GEMERAL INFCHEMATION

The Association was incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong on 3 June 1920.
Pursuant to Section 21 of the Companies Ordinance, the Assgciation has
cbtained approval from the HRegistrar of Companies to register the
Association without incorporating the word “Limited” to its name.

The Assgclation iz limited by goarantee and, accordingly, 41t is not
au;hggizedhtn izsue share capital. The liability of membera iz limited to
HE% 1 each.

There ware 10 members as at the statement of financial position date
(2020: 11).

The address of its registered office is Ho. 207-212, PFodium Fleor, Sleck 44,
Shek Hip Mei Estate, Howloon.

The principal activity is provislon of englneering and medical professional
services to nesdy Individuals and organizations.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGHMIFICART ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied inm the preparation of the=ze
financial statements are =t out below. These policies have been
consgistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

{a) statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong HEong Financial Reporting Standards (HEFRSs), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HEAS=S) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong HKong Institote of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA).

The HEICPFA has lssued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are firat
effective or savallable for early adoption for the current accounting
poericd of the Association. WNete Zi{c) below provides information on any
changes in acscoonting policies resulting from imnitial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Aspoociation for the current and prior accounting pericds reflected in
these financial statements.

i) Basis of preparation of the fipancial statement

These f£inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong HKong Financial PReporting Standards (HEFRSs), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HRASS) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Bong Institote of Certified Public
ABcocpuntants (HKICPA) and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

B U
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERIMG AMD MEDICAL WOLUNTEER SERVICES

HMOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

r

SUMMARY QOF SIGHNIFICART ACCOUNTING POLICTES

- Continued -

62

()

(di

(=]

(£)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The HEICPA has issued & number of amendments +to HEFRESs and new
interpretations that are firat effective for the current accounting
periocd of the ARssociation. of these, none of the developments are
relevant to the Association’s financial statements.

Tha Association has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effectiwve for the current accocunting pericd.

Income recognition

Income 12 recognized when 1t is probable that the economic benefits will
flew to the Association and when the income can be messured relisbly, on
the following bases:

{1} Subventions, when there is reasonable assurance that the
bssociation will comply with the conditiens attaching te the
subventions and that the subwventions will be received. Subventions
are recognized as income owver the periods necessary to match them
with the related costs which they are intended to compensate, on a
aystematic basia;

{ii) Donations and membership apnual subscriptions, uvpon actual cash
recalipkt;

{iil} Interest lncome, on & Lime proporticon basis taking into account the
principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable;
and

{iv) Service income,; in the pericd in which such services are rendered.

COoOVETNment grantﬂ

Gowvernment grants are recognised in the statement of financial position
ipltially when there is reascnable assurance that they will be received
and that the Association will comply with the copditions attaching teo
them. Grants that compensate the Association for expenses incursed are
racognised as revanoe in profit or less om a systematic basis in the sama
periocds in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Aspociation for the cost of an assets are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asszets and conseguently are effectively recocgnised in
profit or loss ower the ugeful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreclation expense.

Impaicment of assebs

At mach reporting date; the Assocciation reviews the carrying amounts of
its assets to determine whether there is an indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of anm assets is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds recoverable amount which 1s the higher of an
asset’s fair wvalue less costs to sell and wvalue in use. Impaicment
losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income except
whare the assat is carried at wvaluation and the impairment loss doas not
exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which rcase it is
treated as a revaluation decrease.
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERIMG AMD MEDICAL WOLUNTEER SERVICES

MOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOE THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

r

SUMMARY OF SIGHNIFICART ACCOUNTING POLICTES

- Continued -

Ll

43

(i}

i3]

Flant and sguipment

Plant and eguipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. For property, plant and equipment which are funded by
gowvernment grants or other grants, such grants are deducted in arriving
at the carrying amount of the assets, and the balance of the coat of
these assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost/value of sach asset,
lass their estimated residval wvalue;, if any, wusing the straight lins
method cver their estimated useful lives. The principle annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:-

Furnitura and eguipmeant 33a%
Leasshold improvement 50%

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and eguipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the iltem and are
recegnized in the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure on
the date of retirement or disposal.

Beceivable

REeceivables are initially recognised at fair walue and thersafter stated
at amortised cost less allowance for impairment losses of bad and
doubtful debts, except wherse the receivable are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or effectc of
digcounting would be immaterial. In =uch caszes, the receivablezs are
stated at cost less allowance for impalrment losses of bad and doubtful
dents,

A provision for impairment of the receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Association will not be able to collect
all amounts dus according to the original terms of receivables. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’'s carrying
amount and the present walue of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provisilon is
recognlised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Fayables

Payables are initially recognised at fair walue and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are astated at original invoice amount.

Zash and cash egquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprize cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-teem,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible inte known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within thres months of maturity at acguisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an imtegral part of the
Asgociation's cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the astatement of cash flows.,

BN U

FINANCE E17 I



I FINANCE Hi7%

Page 15

ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERIMG AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

HMOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOR THE YEAR ENMNDED 31 MARCH 2021

&

SUMMARY OF SIGHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES

- Continued -

(k)

(1)

fm)

64

Employee benefits

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Asscociation’s employess have completed the reduired number
of years of service to the Asscciation in order te be eligible for long
service payments under Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the ™“Employment
Ordinance®} im the event of the termination eof their employmant. The
Agsociation is liable to make such payments in the event that such a
termination of employment meet=s the circumstances specified in the
Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognized in respect of the probable future long service
paymants expected to be made. The provision is based on the best astimata
of the probable future payments which have been earned by the employeas
from their services to the Asscciation to the statement of financial
po=sition date.

A contingent liability 1is disclosed in respect of pessible future long
service payments to emplovees, as a number of current employees have
achieved the required number of vears of service Lo Che Assoclation, to
the statement of financial position date; in order to be eligible for
leng service payments under the Employment Ordinance if their employment
is terminated in the circumstances specified. A provision has not bean
reacognizad in respeact of such possible payments, as it 15 not considered
probable that the situvaticn will result in a material futurse outflow of
resources from the Association.

Pension schemas

The Association operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement bensfits schems (the YMPF Scheme®) under the Mandatory
FProvident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employess who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contribotions are made based on &
percentage of the employees” basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income and expeanditure as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Schem=s. The assets of the HMPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Association in  anm
independently administerad fund. The Azmociation's employer
contributions west fully with the employees when contributed into the MPFE
Scheme.

Cperating leases

Leases whare substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Eentals payable under operating leases are charged to the statement of
income and expenditure on the straight-line basis ower the lease terms.

Designated donaticns and related expenditure

Deglgnated donations recelved are credited directly to the respective
funds. Expenditures are charged to these funds where appropriate.
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERING AMND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

HMOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES

- Continued -

in) Provision and contingent liabilities

Frovisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amcunt
when the Association has a legal or constructive cbligation arising as a
result of a past event, it iz probable that amn outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and & rellable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
sattle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
regquired, or the amount cannct be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefita is remote. Posaible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of cutflow of economic benefits is remote.

3. LOAMS TC DISABLED

2021 2020

HES HES
At beglnning of vear 488,906 608,048
hdvances during the year 230,410 180,000
Loan axemption {44,218) =
Repayment during the year (267, 1B8) (329,140
At end of year 6T, 910 ThE, 506
Porction classified as current assets (191,925) (29L,0159)
Hon-current portion 105,985 177,887

These are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable by monthly instalments.

B Ul
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AMD MEDICAL WOLUNTEER SERVICES

HOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2021

4, PLANT AND ECQUIPHEMNT
Furniture Leasahold

E Eggiggﬁnt Improvement Total

COST
At 01.04.201% 180, T46 128,100 a0Q, 846
additian 7,730 - 7,730
ARt 31.03.2020 168, 478 1Z8, 100 31e, 576
hdditian 11,350 - 11,350
At 31.03.2021 169, 826 T2, 160 321,926
ACCUMULATED DEERECTATION

At 01.04.2018 180, 746 128,100 308, 846
Charge for the year 2,577 = 2,577
At 31,03.2020 r 1Z8,100 311,423
Charge for the year By 360 - By 360
At 31.03.2021 189,663 128,100 317,783
HET BOOE VALUE

ARt 31.03.2021 10,143 = 10,143
At 31.,03.2020 5,153 = 5.153

3. LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS CBLIGATION

The Asscociation had provided long service payments for employeses who had
fulfilled the regquired number of years of service under Hong Eong's
Employment Ordinance (the ‘‘Employment Ordinance®’) on their termination of
employment .

The provision for long service payments is calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Employment Ordinance and is reduced by the cumulative
employer’s contribution to the HPF.

At 31 March 2021, 3% employees (2020: 35) had fulfilled the reguired number
of wyearas of service under Employment Ordinance. The tTotal amount of the
provizicn for leong service payment should be HESH18,22T (2020: HEKS945,752).

However, Social Welfare Department will subvent the long service payments
for the employees under Supported Employment Services, Integrated Home Care
and the Endeavor. No provision was recognised in respect of such paymant as
no material ocutflow of resources will be required to settle the cbligation.
The correspondence amount was disclosed as contingent liability in Hote 31
to the fipancial statements.

The provision was only recognised for the employees under Central
Bdministration.

% A
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ASS0CIATION FOR ENGINEERING AMND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
HOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOF THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
&. GEWERAL FUND
2021 2020
“HES “HEE
Balance at beginning of year - -
Transfer from statement of comprehensive income (63,316} (52,251}
Transfer to Service Foundation Fund - note 7 63,316 52,251
Balance at end of wyear = =
SERVICE FOUNDATION FUND
2021 2020
“HES HES
Balance at beginning of year 5,232,463 4,265,420
Transfer from statement of comprehansive lncoms 1,057,421 1,018,294
Transfer from General Fund - note 6 (63,316) (52,251}
Transfar to Social Welfare Department Lump Sum
Grant Reserve {9,310} =
Balance at end of year B,217, 250 5, Z3Z, 463

The Service Foundatlon Fund ("SFF”) was seb up to support the development of
new services of the Assoclation and the surplus balance of SFF will be used
to offset against any deficits in the General Fund.

INCEFEMDENT LIWVING FTIND

2021 2020
“HBES HES
Balance at beginning of year 2,585,108 2,585,108
Loan exempbion to disabled (44, 218) =
Balance at and of year 2,540,840 7,505,100

The Independent Living Fund was set up separately to provide interest-fres
loana to the disabled and, accordingly, it is not to be used to cover any
deficlts which were derived from any other services or funds.

* Two pounds of cne—off one month repavment exemption Scheme were held 4in
August and December 2020 s¢ as to relieve the financial burden of the loan
applicants during the outbreak of COVID-12 epidamic.

BN U
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERING AMND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
HOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMNTS
FOR THE YEAF ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
9. EBUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT SERVICES
2021 2020
“HEZ “HES
Balance at beginning of year 278,853 278,853
Transfer from statement of comprehensive income 218,101 378,442
Transfer to Social Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Reserve - note 14 {218,101} (378,442}
Transfer to Training Subsidy Programme for Children
on the Waiting List of Subvented Prescheool
Fehabilitation Services - note 2 (110] =
Balance at end of year 278, 743 270, 859
The Supported Employment Services, comeenced inm March 1955, provides
employment opportunities to the disabled.
10. JOCEEY CLUB DESKETOF FUBLISHIRG CENTRE
2021 2020
“HEZ “HES
Balance at beginning of year {1,6497,764) {1,64%, 986}
Transfer to statement of comprehenszive income {121,858R) 147, 7TE)
Balance at end of year (1,919, 820) {I,€87,764)
The funding from The Hong Fong Jockey Club Charities Trust and Chinese
Permanent Cemeteries was used to set up a workshop to provide training and
employment for the disabled since March 1%9%6 and, accerdingly, it is not to
be used to cowver any deficits which were deriwved from any other services or
funds.
11. HOME CARE SERVICES
2021 2020
“EE% “HES
Balance at beginning of year 528,150 528,150
Tranafer from statement of comprehensive income 1,006,452 3p5,54949
Tranzfer to Social Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Beserve - note 14 (1,006,452} (365,995}
Balance at end of year Bl 150 BEH, 150
The Home Care Services aims to provide home care to the alderly and disabled,
as well as needy families 8o as to assist them to continue living in the
community.
68
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERING AMD MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
HOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
1Z. THE EWDEAVOR
2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year 50,573 4,117
Transfer from statement of comprehensive incoms 1,178,707 T, 006
Tranzsfer to Social Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Eegerwve - note 14 (1,178,707 (77T, 008)
Tranzfer from Sccial Welfare Development
Lump Sum Grant Reserve — note 14 45,711 46,458
Transfar to Social Welfare Development Central
ITtems - note 1& (19,474) -
Balance at end of year TE, a10 50,574

This i3 an integrated vocaticnal rehabilitation service centre subvented by
the Soclial Welfare Department.

13, LAUNDRY WORKSHOF

2021 2020
“EES “HES
Balance at beginning of year a4, 4480 27,089
Tranzfer to statement of comprehensive income 11,253 37,401
Balance at end of year T8, 743 B4, 400

The Clean Laundry was funded by the grants from the 'Enhancing Employment of
People with Disabilities through 5Small Enterprise’ Project of the Social
Welfare Department. The Froject commenced operation since February 2006.
The project i= to operate on a self-finance mode after expiry of funding
support from the Social Welfare Department.

14. SOCIAL WELFARE DEFARTMENT LUMF SUM GRANT RESERVE

2021 2020
“ER% “HES

Balance at beginning of year 10,437,054 8,892,713
Tranzsfer from Supported Employment Services - note 8 218,101 378,442
Tranafer from Home Care Services - note 11 1,006,452 305,999
Tranzfer from The Endeavor - note 12 1,178,707 T, 008
Transfer (Lo} /from Social Welfare Department

Provident Fund - note 15 (170,331} 55,643
Transfar to The Endeavor - note 12 (45,711} (A6, 456)
Transfar to Social Welfare Department

Block Grant - note 17 (72,133} 41,170
Transfar from Social Welfare Department

Rent and Rates - note 14 16,427 64,405
Transfer from/{to) Scocial Welfare Development Fund

- note 22 18,842 (103, 5B8)
Tranafer to EC Farm - Vocational Training and

Horticulture Educational Scheme = note 25 = 250,000
Tranafer from Service Foundation Fund = note 7 9,310 =
Refund to Government (1,485, 267} (238, 282}
Balance at end of year 11,711,451 10,437,054

In accardance with the Lump Sum Grant Manual i1ssued by the Social wWelfare
Department in Cctober Z000 and adopted by the Asscciation, any unspent lLump
sum grant 15 to be transferred to and kept in & separate reserve fund.

B U
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ASS0CIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
HOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
15. 50CIAL WELFARE DEFARTMENT FROVIDENT FUND
2021 2020
i “HES
Balance at beginning of year 1,688,967 1,745,610
Tranafer from/({to)} Scclal Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Bessrve - note 14 170,331 ({55,643}
Balance at end of year 1,860,298 1,689,967

In accordance with the Lump S5um Grant Manual isswed by the Social Welfars
Department in April 2005, any unspent lump =sum grant is to be transferred to
and kept in a separate reserve fund.

16. SOCIAL WELFARE DEFRRTMENT CENTRAL ITEMS

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year 142,517 142,517
Transfer from The Endeavor - note 12 19,474 -
Refund to Gowvernment (19,474} -
Balance at end of year 142,917 147,917

In accordance with the Lump Sum Grant Mapual issued by the Social Welfare
Department in April 2005, any unspent lump sum grant is to be transferred to
and kept in a separate resarve fund.

* A
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ASS0CIATION FOR ENGINEERING AMND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
HOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
17. S0CIAL WELFARE DEPARTMENT BLOCK GRANT
2021 2020
“BERS “HES
Balanoe at beginning of year 329,076 370, 248
Tranafer from/({to} Sccilal Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Reserve - note 14 T2,133 (41,170}
Balance at end of year Qﬁl;fﬁg Eigrﬁfg

The Block Grant aims to meet the minor and routine Furniture and Equipment
raplenishment and repairs and maintenance reguirements of ~Agencies in
respect of their subwvented welfare service =0 as to replace the need for
individual applications.

Hﬂziﬂ&ht of the F&E Repleniszhment and Minor Works Block Grant Reserve ls as
follows:-

HES

Credit balance b/f from previous financial year 329,076
Add: Block Grant received during the year 291,000
Interest income received 13

291,013

Less: Expenditure during the year (Note):- 820,083
Minor works projects 102,200
Furniture and aguipment 116, 680

(218,880}

Credit balance c/f to the next financial year 101,209

Capital Commitmeants

Az at 31 March 2021, the outstanding commitments ip respect of Furnlture and
Eguipment Replenishment and Minor Works Grant were as follows:

HES
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements -
Authorized but not contracted for =

Hote: Expenditure charged to Block Grant during the year should be full
gxpenditure amount, i.e. the actual expenditure incurred im 2020-21.

B N
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERING AMND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
HOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMNTS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2021
1E. SOCIAL WELFARE DEFARTMENT RENT AND RATES
2021 2020
“EES “HES
Balance at beginning of year (770,607} (705,463}
Transfer to Social welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Beserve - note 14 (la,427}) (64,405}
Refund to Government {T45) (739}
Balance at end of year (TE&T,779) (770,607}

19,

20

72

In accordance with the Lump Sum Grant Manual Issued by the Social Welfars
Department in April 2005, any unspent lump sum grant is to be transferred to
and kept in a separate reserve fund.

COMMUNITY=BASED SUPPORT PROJECTE FOR FPERSONS WITH DISABILITIES AND THEIR
FAMILIES

2021 2020
“EE% “HES
Balance at beginning and end of year 130, c8a 130, 6E6

Communlty-based Support Projects for Percsons with Disabllities and their
Families aims to provide comprehensive and continvous on-the=job support to
persons with disabilities 3o as to enhance their adaptation and problem
solving ablilitles, The ultimate goal is to assist them to retain theirs
employment. Support is also rendered to their families to relief theirs
prassure and improwve their family relaticnship.

. SOCIAL WELFARE DEVELOPMENT FUND

2021 2020

EKS HES

Balance at beginning of wyear 387,078 464,693
Transfer (to)/from Sccial Welfare Department

Lump Sum Grant Reserve - note 14 (1B,842) 103,586

Surplus refund to Social Welfarse Department - (1BL,200})

Balance at end of year JEE, 237 ZET, 009
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ASSOCTIATION FOR ENGIKEERING AMND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

HMOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

20. SOCIAL WELFARE DEVELOPMENRT FUND
- Continued -

The Fund is allocated by the Social Welfare Department to support training,
capacity enhancement initiatives and service delivery enhancement studies.

Movement of the Social Welfare Development Fund (SWDF)} 1s as follows:=-

HES HES
(a)jBalance of SWDF brought forward - FPhase 3 {a}) 3B7,079
Income
TbTAIlocation from SWDF during the financial year b} -
(c) Interest received during the financial year - Phase 3 ic) 11

(d) Expenditure

1. Expenditure for projects under scope A 18,853
Expenditure for projects under scope B {(non-IT) =
Expenditura for projects under scopa B (IT) -
. Expenditure for projects under scope C —
Expenditure for Administrative Support

Total expenditure during financial year -

L b Gl B

{d} (18,853}

(elBalance carried forward to the pext financial year te) 368,237
(el=(ai+{b}+{c)h=1d) o

The above expenditures under the SWDF have been incurred in accordance with
the reguireméants stipulated in SWDE Guidance HMNotes for applicaticn, SWD's
approval letter({s} and the procurement of projects and services are in lime
with the procedures specified in the lLotteries Fund Manual.

21. JOCEEY CLUBE DIGITAL INCLUSICOK CENTRE

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year (B4,511) (27,301}
Transfer from/(to) statement of comprehensiwve income 36,4585 (57,210}
Balance at end of year (48, 018} (B4, 51T}

The Cantre aims fo narrow the digital divide and enhancing digital
accassibility of peopla with disabilities and elderly such that they can
also banefit from the advancement in technology.

B Ul
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERIMG AMD MEDICAL WOLUNTEER SERVICES

HMOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS

FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

££. ELECTRIC WHEELCHAIR BREFAIR CLINIC AND RESOURCE CENTRE

23, EC FAEM - VOCATIONAL TRAINING AND HORTICULTURE EDUCATIONAL SCHEME

74

Balance at beginning of year
Tranafer from statement of comprehensive income

Balance at end of year

2021
i

1,475,511
14,872

inl EEEJ IEE

Page 25

2020
“HES

1,243,222
238, 2E8

i,i!ﬁ,SIl

The Centre provides repair, maintenance and rental of electric wheelchair so
as to facilitate mobility of people with disabilities and elderly and thus

their integration into the community.

Balance at beginning of year

Transfer to statement of comprehensive incoms

Tranafer {(to)//from Sccial Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Ressrve - note 14

Balance at and of year

2021
HES

(377,333)
(12,171}

(5ED, T24)

2020
HES

(283,491}
(2B, 082}

(250,000}
(577,553)

The Farm Project, commenced in March 2013, provides training opportunities
for people with disabilities on farming and heorticulture and facilitate

their integration into the community.
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ASS0CIATION FOR ENGINEERING AMND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

MOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOE THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

24. COMMUONITY CARE FUNMD - PILOT SCHEME ON HOME CARE AND SUPPCRT FOR ELDERLY
FERSONS WITH MILD TMEATAMENT

=i )

bDuring the year, the Asspciation has implemented Community Care Fund (“CCFT)
azsistance programme. &According to the requirement of CCF, the Asscciation
iz reguired to discloae the income and expenditure for the programme in its
financial statements.

2021 2020
HES HE3
Balance at beginning of year (92,700} (136,354}
Transfar from/{tec) statement of comprehansive income 44,3591 45,604
Balance at end of year (47, 708) 152, T00}

Communlity Care Fund aims to provide home care and support services to
elderly with mild impalrment.

Movement of the CCF - Pilot scheme on Home Care and Support for Elderly
Persons with Mild Impairment is as follows:—

2021 2020
THES HES

Trcomes
Subsidy from CCF 540,168 563,908
Feas income received from participants 30,340 32,581
Social Welfare Development COVID-19 20,000 -

550, 508 ¥50, 095
Expenditure
Eugft fes 3,500 3,000
Cleaning 20,8049 =
Equipment 10,153 -
Galarles 384,812 406, 228
Frovident fund 18,152 20,398
Programme axpenses BB, 122 103, 325
Printing, staticonery and postage 460 56
Travelling 4,057 i, 326
Telephone and fax 3, 080 6, 305
Electricity and water 2,772 8,159

(545, 517) (504, 4EE)
Deficit for the year 44,3491 (92, 700
Balanca at the beginning of the year (92,700} -
Balance at the end of the year 47, 708) 192, 700}

B U
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERIMG AMD MEDICAL WOLUNTEER SERVICES

HMOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

25.

26.

26,

27.

76

TRAINING EUBSIDY PROGEAMME FOR CHILDEEN ON THE WAITING LIST OF SUBVENTED
PRE-SCHOOL REHABILITATION SERVICES
2021 2020
THES “HES
Balance at beginning of year (110} (110}
Transfer to statement of comprehensive income 114 -
Balance at end of year = ElIﬁ}

Training Subsidy Programme for children in the waiting list of subwvented
pre-school ERehabilitation Serwvices aims to provide rehabilitatiocn services
for children wait-listed for subwented pre-schocl rehabilitation services.

SOCIAL WELFARE DEPARTMENT TIME-LIMITED POSTS FOE ELDERLY AND REHABILITATION
SERVICES

2021 2020
“HEE “HES
Balance at beginning of year - -
Tranafer to statement of comprehensive income 22,700 -
Balance at end of year 22,700 -

"Time—limited posts for Elderly and Rehabilitation Services” was created
under the Anti-epidemic Fund with a view to enhance technology suppert for
elderly and rehabilitation service units subsidized by the BSocial HWelfare
bDepartment. & subsidy for a maximum of 12 months was given to each post from
1 Sctober 2020 to 31 December 2021.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KOWG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.622) AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
F TNEGRMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORE] REGULATION [CAE.632G

R o e A o S B L e N A, s o MY

Wo remuneration was paid or payable to the committes members which needs to
be disclosed pursuant teo section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. ©22) and Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation (Cap.B822G}.

TAREATICH
Ho provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made since the Association

is a charitable institution and, accordingly, 15 exempted from Hong Kong tax
under Section BA of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIKEERIMG AMD MEDICAL WOLUNTEER SERVICES

MOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS
FOE THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

28. LEASE COMMITMENT

£3.

30.

As lessor

At the reporting date, the B8ssociation had future aggregate minimum leass
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of investment
properties as follows:-

2021 2020

HES HE3

Within cne year 1,321,836 1,509,036

After one year but within fiwve years 93,000 1,430,436

After five years = 5
CONTINGENT LIABILITY

2021 2020

“EEE “HES

Long service paymentas obligation - note § 028,752 645,189

- - - - — -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS = RISK MANAGEMENT

The Associstion i3 exposed through its operations to one or more of the
following financial risks:

L Fair value or cash flow interest rate risk
- Liguidity risk

Palicles far managing these risks are set by the management of the
Azsoclation. The policy for each of the above risks iz described in moze
detail below,

Fair valus and cash flow interest rate risk

A5 the Association has no significant third party interest-bearing
asgets/liabilities other than in Hong Hong dollar bank deposits, the
Azgociation’'s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.

Ligquidity risk
The MAssociation’s policy i5 to regqularly monitor current and expected

ligquidity requirements to ensure that is maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meat its ligquidity requiremants in the short and longer term.

B
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SERVICE DIRECTORY
R —E

EMV Head Office/ Technical & Computer Aids Services for the Disabled
Community Occupational Therapy

EMV {85 | SSRE ATHHBN RS | BRAEBN R B RERT | iRERAER

Address: 207-212, Podium Floor, Block 44, Shek Kip Mei Estate, Kowloon
ot NBEEABRER 44 & ( EFE ) F& 207212 =

Tel & : 2776 8569 Fax {f8E : 2788 1194 Email B : info@emv.org.hk

Integrated Home Care Service

78 REFRREEARTS

Address: 207-212, Podium Floor, Block 44, Shek Kip Mei Estate, Kowloon

Hott NBEAMRER 44 B ( E¥AE ) & 207212 &

Tel S : 23600803 Fax fSE : 2788 1194 Email EE} : ihcs@emv.org.hk

Supported Employment Service

B BY PR AR TS

Address: Unit No. 2, G/F, Tung Lung House, Tai Hang Tung Estate, Kowloon

biubal NEABRERTIRINRERT 2 57

Tel BEE : 2788 4749 Fax {HE : 27884088 Email EE} : ses@emv.org.hk

Integrated Vocational Rehabilitation Service Centre — The Endeavor

REHRERRBHO - BRFO

Address: G/F, Sau Tai House & Mei Tai House, Fu Tai Estate, Tuen Mun, N.T.
Mok MATEMHERNSREREREMT

Tel B&&: 31571515 Fax H : 3157 1514 Email BB : endeavor@emv.org.hk

Electric Wheelchair Repair Clinic and Resource Centre
EEIRIT— L3

Address: Flat 11, 10/F, Favor Industrial Ctr., 2-6 Kin Hong Street, Kwai Chung, N.T.

Mtk FTRZORMRERST 2-6 SRR T A0 1048 11 587
Tel EBEE : 2772 3080 Fax f8E : 2772 3280 Email EE} : ewc@emv.org.hk

Jockey Club Desktop Publishing Centre

ESEmtkRP O

Address: 12-14, G/F., Ying Tung House, Tung Tau Estate, Kowloon

Mt NEBEHENBEE 12 F 14 50T

Tel E5F: 27160228 Fax f§E : 2716 9817 Email EEp : jcdtp@emv.org.hk
78
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Jockey Club Digital Inclusion Centre / IT Solution for Rehabilitation
EEERISLMP O | BRERERIL

Address: 225-227, Podium Floor, Block 19, Shek Kip Mei Estate, Kowloon

Hhk NEEABEN 19 & 2256 — 227 &
Tel EEE: 27798333/ Fax {8K : 27798821/ Email EEB : jcdic@emv.org.hk /
2788 3211 2788 1194 crehab@emv.org.hk

Pilot Scheme on Home Care & Support for Elderly Persons with Mild Impairment
RIS A R EREIVRE S BT E

Address: 225-227, Podium Floor, Block 19, Shek Kip Mei Estate, Kowloon

ot NEERMREERR 19 5 225 — 227 &

Tel ERE : 2779 8616 Fax {8E : 2779 8821

Eco Farm

IRIRRGE

Address: CS234, Leung Hong Lane, Tuen Mun, N.T.

it FREFIREEHER CS234

Tel EEE: 9667 8816 Fax {8K : 3157 1514 Email EEP : ecofarm@emv.org.hk

Social Enterprise — The CLEAN Laundry
MHELE - REAKREAF

Address: Room 11, 10/F, Block 4, Nam Fung Industrial City, 18 Tin Hau Road, Tuen Mun, N.T.

Hhhit FAREMRGEE 18 REETEHE4E 1011 E
Tel B&E: 35231072 Fax {8HE : 35231074 Email EEB : laundry@emv.org.hk
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

AERORIFBMUER  BEHIERSH
BEIRF > FILISHE ¢

We would like to express our gratitude to the following units for
their generous donations and support to our services:

ORGANIZATION, CORPORATION AND FUND [Ef&#E# - AR RE

The Hong Kong Community Chest Capital Project Fund Fong Yin Cheung & Co. EETEREBSLER

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Mutandis Ltd AR AATE)

Asia Pacific Hallmark Cards (HK) Limited Starlit Way Limited KA1
REZEES

INDIVIDUALS BA

Dr. Alexander C.K. Lam Mr. Leung Kai Che Ms. Keung Wai Yee

Dr. Yu Yuk Lung Mr. Li Hin Tai Ms. Lai Siu Hing

Mr. Chan Chun Wai Mr. Lo Shit Cham Ms. Leong Lai Fun

Mr. Chan Chung Yi Mr. Mak Chung Kwong Ms. Liu Ming Wai

Mr. Chan Hei Tak Sunny Mr. Manjani Shankar Ms. Lucy S. K. Lo

Mr. Chan Ka Mun Mr. Mok Kwok Wai Ms. Ng Oi Kwan

Mr. Chan Kwok Fan Mr. Ng Tat Kwan Ms. Sin Pui Ha

Mr. Cheung Tung Kam Mr. Ruy Barretto S.C. Ms. Tse Mei Yi May

Mr. Chiu Chung Wan Mr. Shek Byn Yiao Ms. Wong Lai Shan

Mr. Choy Chung Wai Louis Mr. Shum Pui Chak Ms. Wong Lai Sim

Mr. Choy Si Ho Mr. Tse King Kui Ms. Wong Mei Ying Begonia

Mr. Fong Wai Lap Mr. Wong Kwok Yung Ms. Wong Si Ping

Mr. Go Wing Wa Mr. Yeung Yiu Shing Gary BB EE Toh

Mr. Ho Si To Ms. Chan Lai Fun HEE L4

Mr. Hon Chi Wai Ms. Cheung Wai Man PRESHE 4

Mr. lu Chi Ming Ms. Chow Mei Ying g wt

Mr. Kwan Yuk Lam Ms. Christine Hui @EHE Tt

Mr. Kwok Tack Seng Darwin Ms. Chu Kar Fung Lisa RIS Z+

Mr. Lam Shi Kit Ms. Connie Chan BEn Lt

Mr. Law Kwong Wah Ms. Ho Yan Wah Una

M

=

. Law Wing Cheong

¥ A

Ms. Joan Shek



DONATION FORM
EEETES

To advocate and spearhead engineering and medical volunteering

services and to integrate other social resources to enhance the
independent living and quality of life for people with disabilities and
the elderly. Your donation would support and develop our services
for people with disabled and elderly.

Donation Information  EH&EE

Donation Amount 18Ei & %8 HKD ## ¢

DONATION FORM #Ezrzkt% I

FrIRABEZBIFHE . B
—ANZEBILIR » —ERORER
ATRHE—RIINERRE - LUB RS
PIRBIIAETERES /B Y BRI
A7 > AGMERIRPBE) - LIFR
BRERATRRENSERY -

Donation Method 1B3k757% [ Crossed cheque X =

* Cheque Payble ‘Association for Engineering and Medical Volunteer Services’
XEREFER T IEAEBERE IS,
* Please send this form & your cheque by mail FBIEARIKER L EZEFHAS

Cheque Number = Z 3§ Issing Bank £53%4R1T

[] Bank Deposit / Transfer $R1T AR / &k (HSBC 121 - 831721 - 838)

* Please send this form & pay in-slip by mail / email / fax
BEARBERAZAR 5/ B I EH A4S

Please send to 552 1F : “Association for Engineering and Medical Volunteer Services”,
Unit 207-212, Podium Floor, Block 44, Shek Kip Mei Estate,

Shek Kip Mei, Kowloon

NERBKREN 44 EFE L 207-212 F >

TIRERBEEBIERE . M

E-mail E#: info@emvorg.hk / Fax EHE : 2788 1194
Donor Information BRAER
Name #% (Mr/Ms.) :
Telephone No H##% &5 : Email EEL :

Address it :

* The Association is Tax-Exempt Charities, the official receipt for tax purposes will be issued.

RERBUTRBAINESHE  MERRAUERRTUIE -

Note: Your personal data will be kept strictly confidential. Under the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, we
need to obtain your consent as we intend to use your personal information in direct marketing services,
activities, products, donation matters, volunteer recruitment, training courses and feedbacks .

BH ETARANBABNSEHRE - RE (BAEH (LB ) KE)  FAEFTEZMEETRAE - 7&RAFRER
SRBEBNER  BREEERE 59 ER - X 2LHEE - HIRBEERRRES -

[ 'agree HRAE [ 'disagree HARE

Signature of Donor B AEE :

Date HER :

B U
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